
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, MAY 7, 2018 

IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting April 16, 2018. 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

2. Resolution 1707 – To Fix the Meeting of May 21, 2018; for a Public Hearing on Amending the 
Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018. 

3. Resolution 1705 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds. 
4. Approve Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Third and Final Reading, Ordinance 750, Amending Chapter 41 Discussion – 

Regarding the Proposed Amendment to Ordinance 41.11 entitled Fireworks. 
2. Discussion Item: Amending the City Code to prohibit Semi Truck parking on 

Tidewater Drive.  
3. Discussion Item: Amending the Current Bicycle Regulations to Include the Operation 

of Skate Boards.  
4. Resolution 1706 – A Resolution Approving an Employee Salary Adjustment for Extra 

Duties Required.  
5. Discussion Item: Consideration to Direct the City Administrator to Work with the 

Partners of Cedar Edge and Little Light in crafting a non-binding Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) regarding the potential project. 

6. Public Hearing: Library Parking / CSD Poplar St Improvements Project. 
7. Resolution 1708 – A Resolution Approving a 28E Agreement between the City of 

West Branch and the West Branch Community School District.   
8. Resolution 1708 – Approving Contract Amount $61,539.85 to LL Pelling Company, 

Inc. for City Road Improvements and Trail Improvements for City Park and Hoover 
Nature Trail.    

9. Resolution 1709 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 1 in the 
Amount of $276,843.04 to Needham Excavating Inc. for the Cubby Park 
Improvements project. 

10. Resolution 1710 – A Resolution Approving Change Order Number One to Decrease 
$126,000 of Expenses from the Cubby Parks Improvements Project.   

11. Resolution 1711 – A Resolution Approving Change Order Number Two, Revised in the 
Amount by $20,100 on the Cubby Parks Improvements Project.   
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 Public Works Department Update 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes 

are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               April 16, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                    7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman, Jordan Ellyson and Brian Pierce were 

present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Deputy City Clerk Gordon Edgar, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman and Police 

Chief Mike Horihan. The first hour of the meeting was a joint City Council and School Board Meeting. 
 
SPECIAL JOINT CITY COUNCIL & SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

Mayor Laughlin asked Superintendent Hatfield to present his discussion topics.  Hatfield first spoke about the 

City and School working together.  He then distributed documents prepared by Shive-Hattery and explained the 

City is responsible for the parking area in front of the library and the school is responsible for everything else 

south to the end of the football field.  The school will be spending $170,000 to $180,000 on their portion and 

will pay for the Cities’ portion of the work with the expectation the City will repay the School in FY20.  The 

work is expected to be completed by August 17.   Hatfield then reviewed some graphs presenting the financial 

health of the district. 

 

Mayor Laughlin commented on his desire to see West Branch grow and felt utilizing TIF dollars would be a 

very good way to finance the growth.  There was a discussion on the Building Incentive Program offered by the 

city and the need to have eligible home owners submit their reimbursement requests. 

 

Superintendent Hatfield spoke about marketing the school as part of the website update it was doing. He 

discussed the need to make people in the area aware of the great teaching and progressive teaching occurring in 

the West Branch schools.  There were comments about the city needing multifamily housing units. 

 

Police Chief Horihan spoke about the cooperation between the Police Department and the school regarding 

Active Shooter Training, the School Resource Officer and Pipeline Safety Training.  Superintendent Hatfield 

thanked Chief Horihan for his foresight in guiding the school in areas of safety improvement.  Chief Horihan 

then responded that the Principals have been great and Superintendent Hatfield has been fantastic to work with.  

 

Mayor Laughlin adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. while the School Board members left the meeting. 

 

The meeting resumed at 7:12 p.m. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Erin Vincent gave a presentation on her business venture with Jerry Sexton at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course.  After 

much research, they believe they have finalized the drawings for the new club house.  Her part of the business 

will host various types of events including weddings and receptions.  The other portion will have a bar and 

restaurant.  They expect that it will be sometime early next year before the facility opens. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Jodi Clemmons, 1897 Fox Avenue, West Branch, introduced herself as a candidate for the Iowa State House of 

Representatives.  She is not accepting PAC money, only donations from individuals.  She is holding “meet and 

greet” events every other weekend in an effort to meet the people of this district. 

 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

Gordon Edgar, 625 Garfield Road, West Branch, discussed the fact that a number of homeowners who are 

eligible for the city tax reimbursement in the Building Incentive Plan have not filed for reimbursement and 

requested Council input on how they might like to see the homeowners informed.  Responses ranged from 

sending a letter, to phone calls and presenting a fact sheet when the new homeowner signs up for city utilities.  
  

Roger Essington, 212 Scott Drive, asked to have Nate Kass look at the Park Project for the possibility of doing 

something at the south end of the detention pond.  Heavy rains cause ponding in his back lawn and he hopes 

something can be on the Park Project that will reduce the water flow to his lawn. 
 
 
APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council meeting April 2, 2018. 

Resolution 1703 – A Resolution approving a contract with Eastern Iowa Brass Band for the 2018 Hoover’s 

Hometown Days celebration in the amount of $3,500.  Motion to accept the resignation of Jacque Gutwein and 

approve the Library Board appointment of Lizabeth Osborne.  Motion to approve the appointments of Gerry 

Brick, Neil Gerot, and Ben Litscher to the West Branch Fire Department. 

Approve Claims Report. 
  
EXPENDITURES       4/16/2018  
    
ALLIANT ENERGY   WATER TOWER    10,158.57  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY  MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES  1,138.71  
BP AMOCO   VEHICLE FUEL    140.52  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES  RADIO REPAIRS    68.38  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC   ROAD STONE    79.10  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER  RECORDING FEES    56.00  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES  DRUG TESTING    147.30  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   9.07  
ELECTRIC PUMP INC   SERVICE CALL    664.20  
FEHR GRAHAM   308 PARK IMP PEDERSEN VALLEY  5,316.25  
FRONTLINE PLUS FIRE & RESC  ANNUAL SIREN CONTRACT   500.00  
HOLLYWOOD GRAPHICS  JERSEYS     1,065.00  
HUTCHCO, INC DBA ALLEGRA  BANNER     176.00  
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL DW DIST 2 OP CERT    120.00  
IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, TRE  IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, TREASUR  130.00  
JC CROSS CO   BLOWER REPAIR    5,040.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.  RECYCLING MAR 2018   3,857.00  
JONES JANITOR SUPPLIES  JONES JANITOR SUPPLIES   115.00  
KELLY TREE FARM LLC   TREES     10,347.00  
KNOCHE, REBECCA   BLDG INCENTIVE REIMBURSEMENT 304.77  
LACKENDER FABRICATIONS INC  EQUIPMENT REPAIR    670.00  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.   SECURITY LIGHTS & SIREN   155.30  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC  SERVICE CALL     139.50  
MARK E ADAMS   BLDG INCENTIVE REIMBURSEMENT  148.43  
MENARDS    SUPPLIES     1,176.36  
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE  EQUIPEMENT REPAIR    518.44  
MIKE OR LYN REDINGTON  BLDG INCENTIVE REIMBURSEMENT  770.77  
PHYSIO-CONTROL INC  BATTERY     377.00  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWE REPLENISH POSTAGE METER   1,005.00  
PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS  YOUTH SPORTS SUPPLIES   670.17  
PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL IN  PEST CONTROL-CITY OFFICE   95.18  
PYRAMID SERVICES INC.  EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE   67.87  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC  TRAINING     300.00  
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS  INK PAD     8.00  
QUILL CORP   OFFICE SUPPLIES    122.62  
REPUBLIC RESPONSEABILITY  SUPPLIES     1,948.00  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY INC ROCK     109.95  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB   LAB ANALYSIS    26.00  
SUMMIT COMPANIES   ANNUAL FIRE EXT SERVICE   338.00  
TIPTON ELECTRIC MOTORS  MOTOR REPAIR    154.71  
UPS    SEWER-SHIPPING    10.46  
WEST BRANCH FORD   VEHICLE REPAIR    1,413.99  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS  VEHICLE REPAIRS    2,353.18  



 

 

WEST BRANCH TIMES   LEGAL PUBLICATIONS-ADVERTISING  915.11  
WEX BANK   VEHICLE FUEL   1,557.19 
    
TOTAL         54,484.10  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES  CLEANING SERVICE    1,278.66  
HIME, JULIA   UTILITY REFUND    28.08  
HULL, DINA   UTILITY REFUND    13.79  
GILLESPIE, RUBYE   UTILITY REFUND    65.07  
IOWA INSURANCE DIVISION  ANNUAL CEMETERY FEES   76.00  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE  COPIER LEASE    59.00  
    
TOTAL         1,520.60  
    
PAYROLL 4-6-8        41,934.01  
    
TOTAL EXPENDITURES       97,938.71  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND     38,666.92  
022   CIVIC CENTER     1,112.97  
031   LIBRARY     6,118.40  
110   ROAD USE TAX     18,217.79  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY    4,414.91  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY   5,373.25  
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE    44.00  
312   DOWNTOWN EAST REDEVELOPMENT   12.00  
600   WATER FUND     9,360.86  
610   SEWER FUND     14,617.61  
    
GRAND TOTAL     97,938.71 

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve the quote from Full Compass Systems, Ltd for wireless microphone components. /Move 

to action. 

Nick Shimmin explained that the wireless system would avoid the noise made by the fan in the projector 

next to the overhead microphone. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Miller, Stoolman, Ellyson.  NAYS:  

None.  Motion carried.   

 

Second Reading Ordinance 750, amending Chapter 41 - Fireworks. /Move to action. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve second reading of Ordinance 750.  AYES:  

Stoolman, Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.   Motion carried. 

 

Resolution 1702, a resolution establishing a new reserve fund. /Move to action. 

Edgar explained that he had received a call from a member of the “100+ Women” club of West Branch 

inquiring how they could donate money to the City for a splash pad in one of the City parks. In order to 

prevent the donation from being used for other purposes, a restricted fund needs to be established.  After 

some discussion it was decided to call it the “Splash Pad Fund”.  Checks should be made payable to the 

City of West Branch and noted “Splash Pad Fund” on the memo line. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1702.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, Ellyson, 

Pierce, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 



 

 

Resolution 1704, a resolution approving a contract for GIS services with Midland GIS Solutions. /Move to 

action. 

Mayor Laughlin commented that the annual service was a little steep.  Goodale explained this was for 

software updates and adding additional items to the data. 

Motion by Elllyson, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1704.  AYES:  Ellyson, Goodweiler, 

Pierce, Stoolman, Miller.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

   

Discussion item:  Proposal to remove sidewalks and replace with sod in Heritage Square Park 

Mayor Laughlin proposed removing the brick and concrete sidewalks and replacing them with grass. After 

much discussion, the consensus was to allow the sidewalks to remain and have the Public Works 

department do what is necessary to improve the lawn turf in the area. 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Jones reported that the Wastewater Task Group visited the Tipton East Lagoons to 

view the Nano2 process in action.  The group has plans to visit Skokie, Illinois to view a Gross-Wen 

technology project at the end of April or early May. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Attorney Olson reported that Croell Redi-Mix expects to begin operations at the new plant very soon.  

They had expected to be there this week but were unable to finish some work as anticipated. 

 

CITY STAFF REPORTS 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Mayor Laughlin said that the Flood Inundation Report was complete and it indicated a major issue downstream 

near Beranek Park that needs to be addressed.  Laughlin said he was trying to schedule meetings with property 

owners in the affected areas and work out a plan to help correct the problems. Laughlin said a meeting was 

tentatively scheduled for April 12, 2018 for Maggie Burger, Speer Financial, to provide the Council a seminar on 

TIF.  He also mentioned that on April 16th, the City Council will be having a joint meeting with the West Branch 

School Board to discuss Poplar Street improvements.  Laughlin further commented that the former Croell site is 

looking good and suggested the Council consider future site preparation plans.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Pierce, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 

 

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Gordon R. Edgar, Deputy City Clerk  

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1707 – To Fix the Meeting of May 21, 2018; for a Public 
Hearing on Amending the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2018. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 3, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

Budget estimates may be amended and increased as the need arises to permit appropriation 

and expenditure of unexpended cash balances on hand and unanticipated revenues. Such 

amendment may be considered and adopted at any time during the fiscal year covered by 

the budget (but prior to May 31) by filing the amendments and upon publishing them and 

giving notice of the public hearing in the manner required in the State Code. Within ten 

days of the decision or order of the City Council, the proposed amendment of the budget is 

subject to protest, hearing on the protest, appeal to the state appeal board, and review by 

that body. A local budget must be amended by May 31 of the current fiscal year-to allow 

time for a protest hearing to be held and a decision to be rendered before June 30. Except 

as specifically provided elsewhere in the Iowa Administrative Code rules, all 

appropriation transfers between programs or funds are budget amendments and shall be 

prepared as provided in Iowa Code section 384.16. The program reference means any one 

of the following nine major areas of public service that the City Finance Committee 

requires cities in Iowa to use in defining its program structure: Public Safety, Public 

Works, Health & Social Services, Culture & Recreation, Community & Economic 

Development, General Government, Debt Service/Capital Improvement Projects, Business 

Type, and Non-Program.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1705 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

  

Transfer of Funds can be performed to transfer funds from one fund, account, or program 

to a different fund, account, or program.  There must be an available fund balance or budget 

in the fund, account, or program being transferred from. The ending balance in both the 

‘from’ fund, account, or program; and the ‘to’ fund, account, or program must be positive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve this Motion 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

  
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  May 3, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 4 



 

 

   



 

 

  
 



 

 

  
 



 

 

  
 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

   
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third and Final Reading, Ordinance 750, Amending Chapter 41 – 

Public Health & Safety, Section 11 - Fireworks 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  May 3, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 
 
 

Changes suggested by Police Chief Mike Horihan and City Council to amend Chapter 41, 

section 11, Fireworks to impose fines for fireworks violations. 

 

This is the third and final reading of Ordinance 750. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Third and Final Reading of Ordinance 750 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

ORDINANCE 750 

 

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF FIREWORKS WITHIN THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Iowa General Assembly recently passed legislation to allow for 

the sale of fireworks in the State of Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said state law allows cities to regulate the use or explosion of 

fireworks within its corporate limits; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

pass legislation regulating the use or explosion of fireworks within the City. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 41.11 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

 

“SECTION 41.11.  FIREWORKS REGULATION. 

The sale, use or exploding of fireworks within the City are subject to the 

following: 

1.   Definition.  The term “fireworks” includes any explosive composition, or combination 

of explosive substances, or articles prepared for the purpose of producing a visible or 

audible effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, and specifically 

includes blank cartridges, firecrackers, torpedoes, skyrockets, roman candles, or other 

fireworks of like construction and any fireworks containing any explosive or flammable 

compound, or other device containing any explosive substance. 

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

 

2.   Regulations.  It is unlawful to use or explode any fireworks; provided the City may, 

upon application in writing, grant a permit for the display of fireworks by a City agency, 

fair associations, amusement parks and other organizations or groups of individuals 

approved by City authorities when such fireworks display will be handled by a competent 

operator.  No permit shall be granted hereunder unless the operator or sponsoring 

organization has filed with the City evidence of insurance in the following amounts: 

   A.   Personal Injury:   $  250,000.00 per person. 

   B.   Property Damage:   $ 50,000.00. 

   C.   Total Exposure:   $1,000,000.00. 

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

 

3.   Exceptions.  This section does not prohibit the sale by a resident, dealer, manufacturer 

or jobber of such fireworks as are not prohibited; or the sale of any kind of fireworks if 



 

 

they are to be shipped out of State; or the sale or use of blank cartridges for a show or 

theatre, or for signal purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks for signal 

purposes, or by a recognized military organization.  This section does not apply to any 

substance or composition prepared and sold for medicinal or fumigation purposes. 

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

 

4. Penalty.  The scheduled fine for a first violation of this Section 41.11 shall be 

$100.00.  The scheduled fine for each additional violation of this Section 41.11 shall be 

$500.00.” 

 

Section 2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for 

and in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

Section 3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be 

adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of 

the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its 

passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  April 2, 2018 
 
Second reading: April 16, 2018 
 
Third Reading: May 7, 2018 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Amending the City Code to Prohibit Semi Truck 

parking on Tidewater Drive. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

No parking on Tidewater. Streets are narrow, not lighted, and blocks sight visibility at 

Baker and Tidewater.  We want to make sure we don't have any semi parking on 

Tidewater, may limit fire response.   Plenty of parking in the business lots.  There was talk 

of no parking on Division but we are not there yet. Suggestions or ideas. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

  

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Amending the Current Bicycle Regulations to 

Include the Operation of Skate Boards.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date.  
 Click here to enter text. 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 3 

BACKGROUND:  

 

We are trying to get a handle on kids ridding skateboards and riding bicycles at 

night.   Thinking of a $65.00 dollar fine, and would be handled as an unscheduled simple 

misdemeanor.       



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1706 – A Resolution Approving an Employee Salary 

Adjustment for Extra Duties Assigned  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The Deputy City Clerk (Leslie Brick) has been assigned duties once done by the Zoning 

Administrator (Paul Stagg) in addition to picking up these duties the City Administrator 

has also assigned clerk and planning duties to the Planning and Zoning Committee.  The 

Deputy City Clerk handles record keeping and work orders for the building inspections 

division, again these were duties vacated by the Zoning Administrator position.  The City 

no longer has a Zoning Administrator and the dollars that were paid for those duties were 

never reassigned.  This measure would assign those dollars to reflect the new duties 

picked up by the City Deputy Clerk ($3,000 is being recommended).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1706 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING EMPLOYEE SALARY ADJUSTMENT 

 

WHEREAS, The Deputy City Clerk provides administrative technical support for the 

City Office; and  

 

 WHEREAS, The Deputy City Clerk has assumed additional Zoning Administration 

duties including additional record keeping, building permitting, building inspection work 

orders and general planning coordinating, including providing staff support to the Planning and 

Zoning Committee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator acknowledges the impact and importance of these 

duties and contributions to the city organization; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve a $3,000 salary adjustment to account for 

the additional duties assigned;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned resolution is hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is 

directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City.   

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 7th day of May, 2018. 

   

  

      

_________________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consideration to Direct the City Administrator to 

Work with the Partners of Cedar Edge and Little Light in Crafting a 

Non-Binding Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Regarding the 

Proposed Potential Wedding Hall Project.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
A memorandum of understanding (MOU) is a nonbinding agreement between two or more 

parties outlining the terms and details of an understanding, including each parties' 

requirements and responsibilities. An MOU is often the first stage in the formation of a 

formal contract. 

 

In this case the MOU can be used to allow the developers (Cedar Edge and Little Lights) 

to press financiers for greater detail because another partner (public / the city) has 

articulated its intent through the MOU. 

MOUs are common, both domestically and abroad. They vary in length and complexity, 

but each understanding represents mutually accepted expectations between people, 

organizations or governments. Like a letter of Intent all MOUs not legally binding and do 

not involve the exchange of money. 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

    
 

              REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: Library Parking / CSD Poplar St Improvements 

Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  May 4, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open / Close Public Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

The West Branch School District is preparing to complete a project. That includes 

new street, curb and gutter, sidewalks and ADA crossings as well as a potential 

replacement of the parking area and sidewalks at the public library. The preliminary 

plans have been provided. The time table of the school is fairly aggressive due to 

the amount of time they have to complete this project.  

 

 

 Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING JURISDICTION OF WEST 

BRANCH CSD POPLAR STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the City of West Branch on the proposed contract 

documents (plans, specifications, and form of contract) and estimated cost for the improvement at its May 7, 

2018, Regularly Scheduled City Council Meeting at the City of West Branch City Hall at 110 N Poplar Street, 

West Branch Iowa, 

 

The West Branch Community School District (CSD) Poplar Street Improvements project.  An additional 

public hearing will be held by the West Branch CSD on the proposed contract documents (plans, 

specifications, and form of contract) and estimated cost for the improvement at its meeting at 5:00 pm on May 

10, 2018, at City of West Branch City Hall at 110 N Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa for the West Branch 

CSD Poplar Street Improvements project. 

 

Sealed bids for the work comprising improvements as stated below must be filed before 3:00 PM. according to 

the clock in the office of West Branch Community School District, on June 5, 2018, in the central office of, 

148 Oliphant Street, West Branch, Iowa, 52358. Bids received after the deadline for submission of bids as 

stated herein shall not be considered and shall be returned to the late bidder unopened.  

 

Sealed bids will be opened and bids tabulated at 3:00 P.M. on June 5, 2018 in the central office at West Branch 

Community School District, 148 Oliphant Street, West Branch, IA for consideration by the West Branch 

Community School District at its meeting on June 11, 2018.  

 

Work on the improvement shall be commenced immediately upon approval of the contract by the Board, and 

be completed as stated below.  

 

Copies of the contract documents are on file with the West Branch Community School District for examination 

by bidders and are available from Rapids Reproduction Inc., 6015 Huntington Ct NE, Cedar Rapids, IA 52402 

or Shive-Hattery, Inc., 316 Second Street SE, Ste. 500, Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52401, ph. 319- 364-0227. In order 

to bid the project, the contract documents must be obtained directly by the bidder from an authorized source.  

 

By virtue of statutory authority, preference will be given to products and provisions grown and coal produced 

within the State of Iowa, and to Iowa domestic labor, to the extent lawfully required under Iowa statutes.  

 

In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a nonresident 

bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires any preference to bidders 

from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any preference to bidders, the imposition of any 

type of labor force preference, or any other form of preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state 

or foreign country. The preference allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or 

foreign country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force 

preference, a nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement 

in this state as would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or foreign country in 

which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 

 

 

 



 

 

General Nature of Improvement  

West Branch CSD Poplar St Improvements  

West Branch Community School District  

Project No. 2181870 

 

This project includes 400 feet of asphalt roadway construction including curb and gutter and sidewalk. The 

parking lot for the West Branch Public Library will also be reconstructed to provide ADA parking and access 

to the library. Storm sewer improvements to Poplar Street.  

 

Each bidder shall accompany its bid with bid security as defined in Iowa Code Section 26.8, as security that 

the successful bidder will enter into a contract for the work bid upon and will furnish after the award of 

contract a corporate surety bond, in a form acceptable to the Jurisdiction, for the faithful performance of the 

contract, in an amount equal to 100% of the amount of the contract. The bidder’s security shall be in the 

amount fixed in the Instruction to Bidders and shall be in the form of a cashier’s check or a certified check 

drawn on an FDIC insured bank in Iowa or on an FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of the United 

States; or a certified share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United 

States; or a bid bond on the form provided in the contract documents with corporate surety satisfactory to the 

Jurisdiction. The bid shall contain no condition except as provided in the specifications.  

 

The West Branch Community School District reserves the right to defer acceptance of any bid for a period of 

sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of bids and no bid may be withdrawn during this period.  

 

Each successful bidder will be required to furnish a corporate surety bond in an amount equal to 100% of its 

contract price. Said bond shall be issued by a responsible surety approved by the West Branch Community 

School District and shall guarantee the faithful performance of the contract and the terms and conditions 

therein contained and shall guarantee the prompt payment of all material and labor, and protect and save 

harmless the West Branch Community School District from claims and damages of any kind caused by the 

operations of the contract and shall also guarantee the maintenance of the improvement caused by failures in 

materials and construction for a period of two years from and after acceptance of the contract. The guaranteed 

maintenance period for new paving shall be four years.  

 

The West Branch Community School District in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 

Stat. 252, 42U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of 

Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs 

of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will 

affirmatively insure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, minority business 

enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 

discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award.  

 

Contractor shall fully complete the project as follows: All roadwork shall be completed and open to traffic no 

later than August 10 2018. Should the contractor fail to complete the work in this timeframe, liquidated 

damages of $500.00 per calendar day will be assessed for work not completed within the designated contract 

term.  

 



 

 

The West Branch Community School District does hereby reserve the right to reject any or all bids, to waive 

informalities, and to enter into such contract, or contracts, as it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 

jurisdiction. 

 

A pre-letting conference will not be held.   

This Notice is given by authority of the West Branch Community School District 

 

 /s/ Kevin J. Hatfield, Superintendent of Schools 

West Branch Community School District  

 

Published in the West Branch Times, West Branch, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

  
 



 

 

  
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 

  
 



 

 

  
 

  
 



 

 

  
 

  
 



 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1708 – A Resolution Approving a 28E Agreement 

between the City of West Branch and the West Branch Community 

School District.  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The West Branch School District is preparing to complete a project. That includes new 

street, curb and gutter, sidewalks and ADA crossings as well as a potential replacement of 

the parking area and sidewalks at the public library. The preliminary plans have been 

provided. The time table of the school is fairly aggressive due to the amount of time they 

have to complete this project.  

 

This agreement would allow the West Branch School District to pay for the entire project 

including portions that belong to the City with the understanding that in the City next budget 

process the city’s portions of the project will be budgeted to repay the school district for the 

portions of the project that are on city property. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move To Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

Resolution 1708 

 

A Resolution Approving a 28E Agreement Between the City of West Branch and the 

West Branch Community School District.  
  

THIS AGREEMENT entered into by and between the City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 N. Poplar 

Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (hereafter referred to as the “City”); and the West Branch 

Community School District, 148 N. Oliphant Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (hereafter referred 

to as “School”). 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch and Board of Directors of the 

West Branch Community School District have both heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable 

to construct improvements along Poplar Street that borders both School and City properties (the 

“Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School has agreed to construct the improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to reimburse the School for the portion of the Project 

that is adjacent to the Public Library; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City and School to enter into a 28E Agreement to 

outline the obligations and responsibilities of each party as it pertains to the construction of the 

Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of this 28E Agreement is to set forth the  

duties and obligations of the City and School in connection with the construction of the Project. 

 

2. CONSIDERATION.  It is hereby expressly acknowledged by both  

the City and School that construction of the Project by the School and the payment in part by the 

City in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement constitutes mutual 

and sufficient consideration to enter into this Agreement. 

 

3. SEPARATE ENTITY.  Further, it is hereby noted that no separate  

legal entity shall be created by this Agreement and the West Branch City Council and Board of 

Directors of the West Branch Community School District. 

 

4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES. 
 
A. The School shall design and construct the Project in accordance with the plans 

mutually approved by both the City and School.   
 

B.  The School shall pay for the entirety of the Project costs in accordance with state law. 

 

5.   PAYMENT OF COSTS.  On the later of July 1, 2018 or final acceptance of the  

Project by the School, City shall pay the School for its share of the Project, which shall not exceed 

$82,141.95 (including contingency) upon invoice by the School.  In the event that the City’s share 

of the Project costs is less than $82,141.95, the City’s share should be reduced to the actual costs 

incurred. 



 

 

 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect from the approval and execution of the Agreement by the School 

and the City, until the completion of the Project and payment by the City.  After payment has been 

made by the City as contemplated in Paragraph 5 above, this Agreement will terminate. 

 

 7.   NOTICES.  All notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed delivered on the date of placing the notice in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, to the 

following address: 
 
  For the School: 
 
  West Branch Community Schools 

  148 N. Oliphant Street 

  West Branch, Iowa 52358 

  ATTN:  Superintendent 

 

 8.   INDEMNITIES.  Each party to this Agreement expressly agrees to save and hold the 

other party, its employees and agents, harmless from any and all claims filed against both or either 

party arising from the performance of the duties and obligations under this Agreement.   

 

9.   FILING.  The Board Secretary of the School shall file this Agreement  

with the Iowa Secretary of State’s office as required by Section 28E.8 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 

Executed and approved this _____ day of ________________, 2018. 

 

 

CITY: 

 

______________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

Executed and approved this _____ day of ____________________, 2018. 

 

SCHOOL: 

 

__________________________________ 

Julie Sexton, Board President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Angie Klinkhammer, Board Secretary 

 

 
  For the City: 
 
  City of West Branch 

  110 N. Poplar Street 

  West Branch, Iowa 52358 

  ATTN:  City Administrator 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1708 – Approving Contract Amount $61,539.85 to LL 

Pelling Company, Inc. for City Road Improvements and Trail 

Improvements for City Park and Hoover Nature Trail. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
LL Pelling has provided the City with a quote for sealcoat services that are necessary for up 

keep of the roads we have in sealcoat. They also provided a quote for finishing the trails at 

Beranek Park as well as the Hoover Trail. These were seal coated six years ago and are in 

need of a new coat. $30,000 is budgeted in this fiscal year 2018 and $30,000 is budgeted in 

next fiscal year 2019.  The remaining $1,500 can be handled as apart of a budget amendment 

in fiscal year 2019 or absorbed in departmental budget savings.  This was not budgeted for 

this year but it is now apparent that it should be completed if the funds can be made available 

for this work.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move To Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1709 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate 

Number 1 in the Amount of $276,843.04 to Needham Excavating 

Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements project.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham  

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
In connection to meeting one of City Council’s Top Goals / Objectives (12 votes) for Cubby 

Park Improvements project.  This is the first pay estimate for work at Cubby Park completed 

by Needham Excavating Inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move To Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1710 – A Resolution Approving Change Order Number 

One to Decrease $126,000 of Expenses from the Cubby Parks 

Improvements Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
In connection to meeting one of City Council’s High Goals / Objectives (7 votes) for a 

Community Splash Pad project.  This item is the continuation of the Splash Pad funding 

strategy approved in the budget process.  Achieved through value engineering of the cubby 

park improvements project, this change order for work at Cubby Park covers the “value 

engineering” discussed to reduce the overall project cost and makes room for Splash Pad 

funding.  

 

This formally removes select items from the contract. It deletes the following: 

 most of the trees (select trees for screening and a few shade trees in strategic or 

difficult areas remain in the plans),  
 

 the parking area east of Scott Drive, and  
 

 the warning tracks for the little league fields. 

 

Conceptually, $105,000 would represent bare bone splash pad project with $21,000 as a 

contingency budget.  Grants and citizen fund raising (of which an effort has already begun) 

can be used to enhance the spray pad in size and quality.  This project is not to start until 

the Cubby Park Project concludes. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move To Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1710 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER ONE TO 

DECREASE $126,000 OF EXPENSES FROM THE CUBBY PARKS 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 

 WHEREAS, Needham Excavating, Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council also approved as one of their high 

priority City Goals / Objectives the development of a Splash Pad; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administrator presented as a part of several budget meetings 

a funding strategy of achieving a budget for the development of a Splash Pad through value 

engineering the Cubby Park Improvements project; and    
 
 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council deemed this strategy acceptable as a part 

of the overall budget approval process and subsequently worked with the project engineers 

to identify acceptable item withdrawals (value engineering items) from the Cubby Park 

Improvements project; and   
 
 WHEREAS, this approach has resulted in $126,000 worth value engineer items; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these fund are enough to fund a basic Slash Pad project; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Splash Pad project also enjoys citizen commitment to fund raise 

and seek grants to enhance the said funding; and 
  
WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said change order. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council approves a change order with Needham 

Excavating, Inc. for a reduction of $126,000 from the Cubby Park Improvements project.  

 

  Passed and approved this 7th day of May, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1711 – A Resolution Approving Change Order Number 

Two, Revised in the Amount by $20,100 on the Cubby Parks 

Improvements Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  May 3, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This change order for work at Cubby Park is recommended as ground water has been 

encountered in the deepest cut areas west of the pipeline. It appears that the groundwater is 

seeping out of the hillside and ponding on the softball field such that earthwork cannot be 

completed and proper compaction cannot be achieved. The contractor was directed to allow 

the area to sit for several days but the ponding is not improving, but rather appears to be 

worsening. This also raises concerns for the stability of the proposed trail along that hillside, 

as excess ground water could lead to frost heave and damage the trail. The tile route will 

follow the trail to intercept the ground water and outlet to the waterway (the natural down-

gradient outlet of the groundwater). This should help reduce the soil moisture to allow for 

proper compaction and complete the grading, as well as dewater the subgrade of the trail to 

reduce the chance for frost heave. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1711 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER TWO, REVISED IN 

THE AMOUNT BY $20,100 ON THE CUBBY PARKS IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT. 

 

 WHEREAS, Needham Excavating, Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council subsequently approved Change Order 

No. 1 on May 7, 2018 to reflect a decrease in the project price in the amount of $126,000; 

and   

 

 WHEREAS, Change Order Number Two, Revised has been reviewed and 

recommended by the contracted Engineering firm of Fehr Graham; and    

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said change order. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council approves a change order with 

Needham Excavating, Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements project for West Branch, IA 

in an amount not to exceed $20,000.   

 

Passed and approved this 7th day of May, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 


